
Vestavia Hills 

City Council Agenda 

July 24, 2017 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Pastor Steve Blair, Church of the Highlands - Grants Mill Campus 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance 

5. Presentation – Steve Ammons - Vestavia Hills Police Foundation 

6. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

7. City Manager’s Report 

8. Councilors’ Reports 

9. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III – Finance Director 

10. Approval of Minutes – July 10, 2017 (Regular Meeting)  

Old Business 

New Business 

11. Resolution Number 4970 – A Resolution Determining That Certain Personal Property Is 

Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purposes And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said 

Surplus Property 

12. Resolution Number 4967 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver Into A Second Amendment To The Remediation Agreement 

Regarding Property Located At 1756 Indian Creek Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

13. Resolution Number 4962 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager To Allocate 

Funding Within The Gas Tax Fund Budget And Capital Reserve Fund For Fiscal Year 

2016-2017 For Street Resurfacing And Infrastructure Repair (public hearing) 

14. Resolution Number 4966 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase 

Certain Equipment For The Vestavia Hills Police Department To Be Reimbursed By The 

FBI(public hearing) 

 



First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

15. Resolution Number 4964 – Annexation – 90-Day – 1644 Shades Crest Road; Michael 

Wedgworth, Owner (public hearing) 

16. Resolution Number 4968 – A Resolution Declaring A Weed And Other Vegetation 

Nuisance Pursuant To Ordinance Number 2567 And Directing The City Manager To 

Abate Said Nuisance (public hearing) 

17. Resolution Number 4969 – A Resolution Declaring A Weed And Other Vegetation 

Nuisance Pursuant To Ordinance Number 2567 And Directing The City Manager To 

Abate Said Nuisance (public hearing) 

18. Ordinance Number 2724 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The Purchasing 

And Closing Of The Sale Of Real Estate 

19. Citizen Comments  

20. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
July 10, 2017 

Page 1 
 

 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JULY 10, 2017 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM.  The 
Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 

      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor  
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Marvin Green, Interim Fire Chief 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Treasurer 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Lori Beth Kearley,  
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
 
 
 George Pierce, Councilor, provided the invocation, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

• Mr. Pierce announced that the annual celebration called “Back to School in the Hills” 
will be held on August 11 at the Cahaba Heights athletic fields.  Information may be 
obtained from Lisa Christopher at the Chamber of Commerce. 

• Mayor Curry stated that August 21 is National Senior Citizens Day and Vestavia Hills 
will participate by hosting a reception at City Hall for Seniors Citizens.  He indicated 
that Jabo Waggoner and Governor Kay Ivey have agreed to attend the event. 

 
 



City Council Minutes 
July 10, 2017 

Page 2 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes stated that the pedestrian tunnel, connecting Liberty Park to SHAC, has 
been preliminarily approved for bid by ALDOT.  He explained that this funding request 
has been years in the making through a special grant from ALDOT.  The funding of this 
project is split 80/20 with estimated costs of $473,000 along with utility relocations.  He 
stated that the bidding will be handled by the City with final acceptance by the Council.  
He asked Rob Vermillion, Volkert Engineering, to explain the project.  Mr. Downes 
stated they hope to have the bid package available in September. 

o Mr. Wood explained the location of the project and the parameters of the tunnel.  
The facility will containing lighting for safety and be large enough for golf carts. 

• Mr. Downes gave an update on the draft through-road agreement with Jefferson County 
including Dolly Ridge Road, Columbiana Road, Massey Road, Rocky Ridge Road, 
Shades Crest Road and Tyler Road.  The updated document should also include 
Crosshaven Drive and Green Valley Road and may eventually remove Tyler and Massey 
Roads.  He stated he will be working with the city engineer to continue to finalize the 
document and bring it to the council soon.   

• Mr. Downes explained that, in the past, the City has had a city-wide survey mailed to a 
targeted pool of residents that is statistically representative of our city.  He stated that he 
has put another survey into this year’s budget.  He encouraged the Council to review the 
most recent survey and recommend revisions. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
• Mrs. Cook stated that the Vestavia Hills Board of Education had a ribbon cutting today 

for the new Cahaba Heights gym.  She applauded the efforts of the Board for this 
refurbishment.  There will be a Board meeting July 25, 2017, beginning at 6 PM.   

• Mr. Pierce stated that the I Love America Day, which was postponed from its original 
date and held last Thursday, was a great success.  He thanked the Chamber of 
Commerce for hosting this event. 

• Mr. Weaver stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission will meet Thursday 
beginning at 6 PM. 

• Mr. Head stated that the subcommittee meetings of the Community Spaces Project will 
begin tomorrow and will be held at various times over the next couple of weeks here at 
City Hall.  He indicated these will primarily consist of discussion and debate of issues.  
Around the first week of August the subcommittees will come together to compose a 
recommendation. 

• Mrs. Cook stated that those Community Spaces sessions will be posted and the public is 
encouraged to attend. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the June 26, 2017, regular meeting were presented for approval. 
 



City Council Minutes 
July 10, 2017 

Page 3 
 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of June 26, 2017 (regular 
meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mrs. Cook and second by Mr. 
Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4957 
 
Resolution Number 4957 – A Resolution To Replace The Current Firewall System With 

Heightened Security For Prevention Of Cyber Threats To The City Of Vestavia 
Hills Computer Systems And To Allow The City Manager To Retain An Additional 
IT Technician (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4957 was made by Mr. Cook and second 

was by Mr. Weaver.  
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution is a measure to protect the City, further, 
against cyber-threats.  He indicated some sister cities have been held hostage by ransomware 
and the City has been subject to several phishing emails.  So far, the City has been lucky to 
avoid these, but the attempted breaches of security are becoming more sophisticated every day.  
He stated that the City has already taken steps to increase our cyber-security, by taking out 
cyber insurance, installing security defense software and training employees in how to 
recognize attempted breaches.  The IT Director has suggested the installation of an additional 
firewall protection, and recommends hiring an additional IT tech to assist in keeping software 
protections up-to-date.  The city manager explained that the IT department has found a small 
surplus in this year’s budget and explained the additional funding needed in order to accomplish 
both recommendations.  Mr. Downes explained that Councilor Cook had questioned privatizing 
the IT support for the City.  He stated that the City has contracted out some IT work in the past, 
including managing the email system.  However, the Jefferson County Personnel Board requires 
justification when out-sourcing a service that can be provided by a classified employee.  Mr. 
Downes does not believe there is sufficient justification, in this case, to out-source the services 
needed. He stated that, in analyzing the cost differential, hiring an additional employee is 
actually cheaper than hiring a third party.  The City has recently delayed upgrading our financial 
software for more than a year because of a deficit in manpower.  He recommended approval of 
the Resolution as described. 
 
 Mr. Estes, IT Director, was present in regard to the request. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated she had asked about whether the City had a robust disaster recovery 
plan and Mr. Estes sent her the City’s policy.  She stated she was satisfied the City has the 
ability to recover from a loss of data, but that the main concern would be a breach of 



City Council Minutes 
July 10, 2017 

Page 4 
 

confidential information kept on these servers and that it is important for the City to protect 
sensitive information. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked if the new employee would be included in next year’s budget. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

REOLUTION NUMBER 4963 
 
Resolution Number 4963 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver An Estoppel Agreement With Vestavia MZL, LLC And An 
Assignment Agreement With Vestavia MZL, LLC, Excel Vestavia, LLC, and 
Vestavia Outparcel Holdings, LLC 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4963 was made by Mr. Pierc3 and second 

was by Mr. Weaver.  
 
Mr. Downes stated the City Center is about to be sold to another entity.  He explained that the 
City Center property is divided in three sections and all three are a part of this proposed sale to 
Katz Properties.  He explained that the City owns some of the parking facilities, which were 
shown in a diagram.  He indicated that these agreements assign a 2001 agreement that addressed 
the maintenance of and payment of taxes on these parking facilities to the new owner.  The 
agreement provides maintenance of these parking facilities is the responsibility of the owner of 
the shopping center and the City is paid a fixed dollar amount in lieu of taxes that would have 
been paid by the owner for the parking facilities.  The new agreement ensures there are no 
changes to the maintenance terms and includes an estoppel agreement to ascertain there are no 
known, outstanding violations of the original agreement.  The new owner, Katz Properties, 
submitted a memo describing their intended improvements to the property.  Mr. Downes read 
the memo to the Council and the audience. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked about enforceability of the intentions stated in the memo. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that there is no way to enforce the statements in the memo and that 
only the contents of the agreement can be enforced.  He stated that the sale is a private 
agreement between the property owner and purchaser and the City is only insuring that the same 
terms are maintained after the transfer of ownership. 
 
 Mr. Boone explained an estoppel agreement. 
 



City Council Minutes 
July 10, 2017 

Page 5 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – abstain  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a 
public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on July 27, 2017, at 6:00 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4962 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager To Allocate 
Funding Within The Gas Tax Fund Budget For Fiscal Year 2016-2017 For Street 
Resurfacing And Repair (public hearing) 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, indicated that the City has revised certain ordinances 
to provide enforcement of matters such as maintenance of property, leash laws, etc.  He thanked 
the Council for updating these ordinances to allow the compliance officer, Cpl. Jimmy 
Coleman, to go out and assist with these problems.  He stated that Jimmy does a great job. 
 
 Bo Kirkpatrick, 716 Vestavia Lake Drive, addressed the City Council regarding 
construction at the Vestavia Country Club. He stated the contractor has allowed silt to escape 
the site and drain into the lake and that it has begun to fill in the lake.  He stated that the City 
has been made aware of the problems and the city engineer and city manager have been helpful, 
but the erosion is getting worse and worse and there are many homeowners that are angry about 
this situation.   Complaints have been filed and ADEM has been on the scene as have Cahaba 
Riverkeeper and that testing has been done.  He stated that the Council needs to be aware that 
the residents have been consulting with an attorney to determine options and they will be 
looking to the City for assistance as well.  He asked for this matter to be put on the next work 
session agenda of the Council. 
 
 Mayor Curry stated that the Council can discuss this at the next work session and 
acknowledged that the Country Club is located in the County, but that the lake is privately 
owned.   
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
July 10, 2017 

Page 6 
 

 At 6:55 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:55 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4970 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4970 
 

 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 

PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 

DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 

SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal 

property detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell or dispose of said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4970 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 24
th

 day of July, 

2017. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution Number 4970 

Page 2 

 

“EXHIBIT A” 

 

 

From: Melvin Turner  

Sent: Thursday, July 20, 2017 10:51 AM 
To: Wendy Dickerson 

Subject: Declare Surplus 

 

Wendy, 

Please declare the following surplus: 

 

1) Grand Marquis- LS  

YEAR - 2000 

VIN - 2MEFM75W3YX642907 

TAG # - 33555 MU 

 

Thank you, 

Melvin 

 

 
Melvin Turner, III - Director 
Finance Department 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4967 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY 

MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE 

REMEDIATION AGREEMENT REGARDING PROPERTY LOCATED 

AT 1756 INDIAN CREEK DRIVE, VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243. 

 

WHEREAS, the Appropriate Municipal Officials of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama (“the City”), determined that the condition of the building or structure located at 

1756 Indian Creek Drive, Vestavia Hills, AL 35243, Alabama, Parcel I.D. Number 28-00-20-

4-004-015.000 (“Subject Property”), was unsafe to the extent that it is a public nuisance; and 

WHEREAS, Deborah Reinhardt is the owner of the Subject Property; and 

WHEREAS, on July 11, 2016, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“the City”) and 

Ms. Reinhardt entered into a Remediation Agreement (“the Original Remediation 

Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, on March 15, 2017, Ms. Reinhardt and the City entered into a First 

Amendment to the Remediation Agreement (“First Amendment”); 

WHEREAS, Ms. Reinhardt and the City desire to make certain limited amendments 

to the remediation agreement as amended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, while in regular session on Monday, July 24, 2017, as follows: 

1. On behalf of the City, the Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to 

enter into the Second Amendment to the Remediation Agreement along substantially the 

same terms as those provided in Exhibit 1 attached hereto;  



2. This Resolution shall not revoke any prior resolution or order concerning the 

Subject Property as the same are intended to continue in effect; and 

3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24
th

 day of July, 2017. 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Ashley C. Curry 

Mayor 

ATTESTED BY 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

 

I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution Number 4967 

duly and legally adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 

_____ day of __________, 2017, while in regular session, and the same appears of record in 

the minute book of said date of said City. 

 

 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____ day of __________, 2017. 

            

      ____________________________________ 

       Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

  



 

 

 

Exhibit 1 
 

  



 
  



 
  



  



 



Resolution Number 4962 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4962 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

ALLOCATE FUNDING WITHIN THE GAS TAX FUND BUDGET AND 

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 FOR 

STREET RESURFACING AND INFRASTRUCTURE REPAIR IN THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 

WHEREAS, on August 22, 2016 the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4867 adopting a General Fund Budget, a Special Revenue Fund Budget, a Capital 

Project Fund Budget and a Sidewalk Project Fund Budget for the City of Vestavia Hills for fiscal 

year 2016-2017; and 

 WHEREAS, said Special Revenue Fund Budget includes the 07-7 Cent Gasoline Fund; 

and 

 WHEREAS, said 07-7 Cent Gasoline Fund annually includes appropriation of funds to 

allow for street paving, repairs and maintenance; and 

 WHEREAS, on September 12, 2016 the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4878 accepting a bid for street resurfacing and repairs with the intent to utilize the FY 

17 budgeted paving funds coupled with the FY 16 end of the year fund balance in Fund 7 to 

cover the projected expense; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s residential paving program for the fiscal year 2017 is now 

complete; and 

 WHEREAS, said completion left a purchase order balance of $89,350.00; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Public Services Director and City Engineer have examined said 

balance and projected fund balance and would like to utilize $45,000.00 of said remaining 

balance for continued road repair and maintenance as needed for the remainder of the fiscal year 

2017; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has examined said fund and recommended the allocation 

of funding from the 07-7 Cent Gasoline Fund to cover the expense for continued road repair and 

maintenance as needed for the remainder of the fiscal year 2017; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the recommendation and find it 

is in the best public interest to approve that the City Manager allocate funding within the budget 

in order for continued road repair and maintenance; and 



Resolution Number 4962 

Page 2 

 

WHEREAS, after original publication of this proposed resolution the City experienced 

several flash flood events resulting in major infrastructure damage including but not limited to a 

compromised pipe and sink hole along Morgan Drive. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to allocate money from the 07-7 Cent Gasoline 

Fund for the continued road repair and maintenance in the amount of not to exceed 

$45,000; and 

2. The Mayor and City Council agree that the repair of public infrastructure along Morgan 

Drive is deemed of critical public importance and is a condition considered an emergency 

situation requiring immediate repair not subject to the competitive bidding process; and 

3. The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend up to $____________ from the City’s 

Capital Reserve Fund to repair the infrastructure along Morgan Drive. 

4. This Resolution Number 4962 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24
th

 day of July, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

















RESOLUTION NUMBER 4966 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

PURCHASE CERTAIN POLICE EQUIPMENT FOR THE VESTAVIA 

HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT TO BE REIMBURSED BY THE FBI 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase certain police equipment as detailed 

in an interoffice memorandum from the Police Chief to the City Manager, a copy of 

which is marked as “Exhibit A” and is attached and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4966 as though written fully therein; and 

2. Said purchase shall be funded from the Police Department Confiscations Account 

awaiting reimbursement from the FBI; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4966 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24
h
 day of July, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit A 
 

VESTAVIA HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT    
 

 

To: Mr. Downes    MEMO 
  

From: Chief Dan Rary 

 

CC: Becky Leavings 

 

Date:  19 July 2017 

 

Re: Request for Council agenda 

 

Mr. Downes, 

 

I am requesting that the following item be placed on the City Councils agenda for the 24 July 

2017 for a unanimous consent vote. 

 

I am requesting to purchase the below items out of the PD confiscations account for the Police 

Department.  The purchase price of this expense will be reimbursed to this account by the FBI.  

The total price for this project will not exceed $17,000.00.  The breakdown of this expense is 

below. 

 

CELLEBRITE Analyzer UFED 4 PC   $4,002.64 

 

TRUCKVAULT (Vehicle locking boxes)  $7,893.71 

   Plus shipping 

 

TOTAL      $16,993.71 

 

Funding will come from the PD Confiscations Account. 

 

We do not have to bid this out due to these being single source items. 

Section 41-16-51 

Contracts for which competitive bidding not required. 

(13) Contractual services and purchases of commodities for which there is only one vendor or 

supplier and contractual services and purchases of personal property which by their very nature 

are impossible to award by competitive bidding. 



Resolution Number 4964 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4964 
 

 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 

LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 

ALABAMA. 

 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated May 9, 2017, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of August, 2017; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 2
nd

 day of August, 2017. 

 2.  That on the 27th day of November, 2017, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a 

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4964 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4964 

Page 2 

 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

1644 Shades Crest Road 

Michael Wedgworth, Owner(s) 

 

Legal Description: 

 

Beginning 209 feet West of the Southeast corner of the Southwest ¼ of the 

Northwest ¼ of Secion 25, Township 18, Range 3 West; thence North 973.5 feet 

to Columbiana Road; thence Northwardly along the South side of said road 414 

feet; thence South 1,075.08 feet; thence East 281.82 feet to the point of beginning. 

 

Situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, Birmingham Division. 

 

Less and except any portion of subject property lying within a road right of way. 

 

Being more particularly described as follows: 

 

Begin at an iron pin found at the intersection of the West line of Overlook Crest 

as recorded in Map Book 210 on Page 43 in the Office of the Judge of Probate, 

Jefferson County, Alabama, Birmingham Division and the North Right-of-Way 

line of Shades Crest Road; thence run in a Westerly direction along said North 

Right-of-Way line for a distance of 281.21 feet to a concrete monument found; 

thence turn an interior counterclockwise angle to the left of 89°39’02” and run in 

a Northerly direction for a distance of 826.12 feet to a concrete monument found 

on the South Right-of-Way line of Green Springs Highway and also being on a 

curve to the right having a central angle of 26°34’00” and a radius of 644.50 feet; 

thence turn an interior counterclockwise angle to the left to the chord of said 

curve and run in a Southeasterly direction along the arc of said curve and also 

along said South Right-of-Way line for a distance of 298.84 feet to a ½” rebar 

found; then turn an interior counterclockwise angle to the left from the chord of 

said curve of 111°16’52” and run Southerly along the West line of Overlook Crest 

as recorded in Map Book 210 on Page 43 in the Office of the Judge of Probate, 

Jefferson County, Alabama, Birmingham Division for a distance of 718.68 feet to 

the Point of Beginning. 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of August, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

 

 



Resolution Number 4964 

Page 3 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

1644 Shades Crest Road 
Michael Wedgworth 

 
 



Property:

Owners:

Date:

Annexation Committee Petition Review

L^ SwLo CUsf ...

7/"Ai
l. The property irmuesTion is contiguous to the city limits.

Yes t -/No Comments:

2. The land use af-the'petitioned property is compatible with land use in the area.
Yes w""^ No Comments:

3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy
Task Force Rejp&rTas an area of interest to the city for annexation.
Yes >-/ No Comments

4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations
and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation.
Yes . ^^ No Comments

5. Individual household has a Jefferson or Shelby County Tax Assessor minimum
market value of hiI /-j— Meets city criteria: Yes No
Comment:

6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of
the city
Yes No / a
Number of total homes A/jJ^J _Number in city

7. Fire dues pursuant to Act #604 of the State of Alabama, and any other
assessments on the property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and
their payment proven to the city. ^S
Agreed to by petitioner: Yes *^ No Comment



Property: JW4 5iv<*Ao b^ Q*aJ
8. A non-refundable administrative fee of$100 has been paid tothe city.

Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of
$ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation.

CommentYes No

9. Property is fip^nd clear ofhazardous waste, debris and materials.
Yes \ X'Ho Comment

10. Are there any concerns fromj&itjrSepartments?
Yes No i^Comments:

11 .Information on children: Number in family ffi/Ar ;Plan to enroll in VH
schools Yes No Comment^:

12. Roard of Education comments/concerns: // 0/7 fc p&t f& &r
A^tfeeAhL* ys)

Other Comments:

Cfeorge Pierce
Chairman

4-1 H*h

£+-



   Unfiled Notes Page 19    









SHADES CREST RD

HOLLY

RD

ERWIN CIR

WOODBINE DR

VESTAVIEW LN

SH
AD

ES
 C

RE
ST

 R
D

JACOBS
RD

AR
BO

R 
LN

MOUNTAIN
GAP
CIR

OV
ER

LO
OK

C RS
T

GLENWOOD
RD

FLOWERW OODDR

WHITEWAY

OLD COLUMBIANA RD

CR
ES

TM
ON

T
DR

OLD
CO

LU
MBIA

NA
RD

CO
LU

MBIA
NA

RD

COLUMBIANA RD

WO
OD

VIE
W 

DR

Subject Property

Jefferson County
Homewood

Vestavia Hills
Hoover ®

Department of GIS
City of Vestavia Hills

May 23, 2017

1644 Shades Crest Road





















MOUNTAIN GAPCIR

SHADES CREST RD

HOLLY RD

WOODBINE DR

OL
D CO

LU
MBIA

NA
RDCAMDEN AVE

UN
NA

ME
D

RD
CO

LU
MBIA

NA
RD

BERRY RD COLUMBIANA RD

WOODMERE DR

JACOBS

RD

KE
NT

 W
AY

HICKORY KNLS

KENTWAY

AR
BO

R 
LN

OV
ER

LO
OK

C R
ST

UNNAM
ED

RD

OLD COLUMBIANA
RD

GLENWOOD RD

CR
ES

TM
ON

T
DRHI

GH
HIL

L AVE

WHITE WAY

CH
ES

TE
R 

ST

Subject Property

®Department of GIS
City of Vestavia Hills

June 1, 2017

1644 Shades Crest Road
Area Map of Houses/Buildings

Jefferson County
Homewood

Vestavia Hills
Hoover













SHADES CREST RD

HOLLY

RD

ERWIN CIR

WOODBINE DR

VESTAVIEW LN

SH
AD

ES
 C

RE
ST

 R
D

JACOBS
RD

AR
BO

R 
LN

MOUNTAIN
GAP
CIR

OV
ER

LO
OK

C RS
T

GLENWOOD
RD

FLOWERW OODDR

WHITEWAY

OLD COLUMBIANA RD

CR
ES

TM
ON

T
DR

OLD
CO

LU
MBIA

NA
RD

CO
LU

MBIA
NA

RD

COLUMBIANA RD

WO
OD

VIE
W 

DR

Subject Property

B-1
B-1*

B-2
B-3*

Inst-1
Inst-1*

R-2
R-2/PART

R-9

®Department of GIS
City of Vestavia Hills

May 23, 2017

1644 Shades Crest Road



Article 5 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS 

p. 5-3 

§5.3. R-2 Medium Density Residential District 

This district is intended to accommodate 
detached, single-family dwellings on 
moderately-sized lots together with other 
uses, as may be permitted on appeal, which 
are compatible with such residential uses. 

5.3.1. Use Regulations: See Table 5 (at the end 
of this Article) for Permitted Uses, 
Special Exception Uses, and Conditional 
Uses.  

1. Only low intensity institutional uses shall 
be permitted and only by Special 
Exception per §12.3 or as Conditional 
Uses per §13.3, as indicated in Table 5. 

5.3.2. Area and Dimensional Regulations. The 
area and dimensional regulations set 
forth following and in Table 5.3 shall be 
observed (See also Article 4 General 
Regulations): 

1. Only one main structure and its 
accessory buildings may be built on any 
lot of record, which, at the time of 
enactment of this Ordinance, is 
separately owned. 

2. On no lot separately owned shall the 
aggregate width of required side yards be 
such that less than twenty-four (24) feet 
of the width of the lot be left to build 
upon after side yard requirements are 
observed. 

5.3.3. Development Standards. 

1. For accessory structures, see §4.4. 

2. For parking requirements, see Article 8. 

3. For landscaping requirements for 
permitted non-residential uses, see 
Article 9. 

4. For sign regulations, see Article 11. 

 
Table 5.3 R-2 District Area and Dimensional 

Regulations 
Min. Floor Area 1,600 sq. ft. 
Min. Yard Setbacks 

Front 50 ft 
Rear 30 ft 
Side 15 ft 

Min. Lot Area 15,000 sq. ft. 
Min. Lot Width 100 ft 

Max. Building Height 35 ft or 2 ½ stories, 
whichever is less 

Max. Building Area 
On percent of lot 30% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2331 
Vestavia Hills Zoning Code 

p. 7-2 

equipment and provided no clients or 
customers shall be allowed on premises. 

The Board of Zoning Adjustment may 
approve other home occupations per 
§12.3 Special Exceptions so long as they 
present no greater impact on the 
neighborhood than those listed above and 
provided conditions required by the BZA 
will be met to limit noise, traffic or other 
impacts that might otherwise disrupt the 
residential character of the neighborhood.  

§7.2. Gas and Service Stations 
7.2.1. Use Limitations  

1. The following uses shall be prohibited: 
painting, body work, major repair, 
dismantling for recovery of parts, and 
sales or rental of motor vehicles or 
trailers. 

2. Service stations shall not include more 
than three (3) service bays. 

7.2.2. Area and Dimensional Regulations 

1. All oil drainage pits and hydraulic lifts 
shall be located within an enclosed 
Structure and shall be located no closer 
than fifty (50) feet to an abutting 
residential lot line and no closer than 
twenty-five (25) feet to any other lot line. 

2. All permitted mechanical repair work 
shall be conducted within an enclosed 
structure and shall be located no closer 
than fifty (50) feet to any abutting 
residential lot line and no closer than 
twenty-five (25) feet to any other lot line. 

3. Fuel pumps, pump islands and other 
service facilities may occupy required 
yards; however, such shall be set back at 
least fifteen (15) feet from any lot line. 
Canopies shall not extend closer than 
five (5) feet to any lot line. 

7.2.3. No storage of vehicles shall be permitted 
for periods in excess of thirty (30) days. 
Vehicles shall not be permitted to remain 

on the property longer than forty-eight 
(48) hours unless such vehicles are stored 
within an enclosed building or within a 
rear or side yard screened in accordance 
with §9.4 Screening. 

§7.3. Conservation Subdivisions 

7.3.1. Intent 

1. To provide the flexibility to achieve the 
most effective development on lands that 
are constrained by natural hazards, 
environmentally sensitive areas or 
environmental regulations, which may 
limit the amount or type of development 
on such properties; 

2. To enhance quality of life by promoting 
the creation of accessible greenspace 
throughout the community; 

3. To protect sensitive, environmental land 
features to protect the health and safety 
of residents and neighboring property 
owners; 

4. To reduce erosion and sedimentation by 
minimizing land disturbance and removal 
of vegetation; 

5. To encourage interaction within the 
community by allowing clustering of 
homes and orienting them closer to the 
street, thereby providing gathering places 
and encouraging the use of parks as focal 
points within the community; 

6. To encourage street systems that tend to 
reduce traffic speeds and reliance on 
main arteries. 

7. To promote construction of convenient 
walking trails, bike paths, and greenways 
within new developments that are 
connected to Adjacent neighborhoods 
and activity centers to increase 
accessibility for pedestrians and 
bicyclists; and 



8. 

7.3.2. 

7.3.3. 

7.3.4. 

1. 

2. 

To reduce pe
a maximum n
access to and

Applicability
Subdivision o
by right in an
single-family
permitted. Th
with all other
Ordinance an
regulations, e
modified as s

Ownership of
tract of land t
developed ma
separate, and 
in multiple ow
developed ac
common auth
maintenance 
by the City A

Density Dete
number of lot
minimum lot 
District, the m
by City or Co
standards for 
density limita
the maximum
district, whic
Furthermore,
also take into
necessary for
subdivision r
calculation, th
included in th
Parcel: 

Bodies of ope
contiguous ar

Wetlands, as 
the Army Co
Section 404 o

rceived densit
number of lots
d views of ope

y. The Conserv
option is avail
ny zoning distr
y detached dw
he applicant sh
r provisions of
nd all other ap
except those w
specified with

f Developmen
to be subdivid
ay be held in 
multiple own

wnership, the 
cording to a s

hority and com
responsibility

Attorney. 

rmination. Th
ts shall be det
size of the Ap

minimum lot s
ounty Health D
septic tank u

ation where ap
m density of th
hever is most
 density deter

o account the a
r internal stree
equirements. 
he following 
he total acreag

en water over
rea; and 

defined by th
rps of Engine
of the Clean W

ty by providin
s with direct 

en space. 

vation 
lable as a use 
rict in which 

wellings may b
hall comply 
f this 

pplicable 
which may be 
hin this Section

nt Site. The 
ded and/or 
single, 

nership. If hel
site shall be 

single plan wi
mmon 
y as approved 

he maximum 
termined by th
pplicable 
size as require
Department 
se (or similar 
pplicable), or 
he applicable 
t restrictive. 
rmination shal
amount of lan
ets and other 
In making thi
shall not be 
ge of the 

r 5,000 sq. ft. o

he City or by 
eers pursuant t
Water Act.  

ng 

be 

n. 

d 

ith 

he 

ed 

ll 
nd 

is 

of 

to 

7.3

 

Artic

3.5. Applicati

1. Site Anal
with the s
the applic
site analy
analysis m
site featur
identified
design, an
will meet
Section. T
include th

a. Propert
b. All stre

flood h
hydrolo

c. All bou
buffer 
way; 

d. Topogr
interva

e. All Prim
Conser
describ

f. Genera
g. Genera
h. Planne

Space;
i. Existin
j. Potenti

greensp

cle 7 USE-SPEC

ion Requireme

lysis Map Req
submission of
cant shall prep
ysis map. The 
map is to ensu
res have been

d prior to the c
nd that the pro
t the requirem
The site analy
he following: 

ty boundaries
eams, rivers, l
hazard bounda
ogic features;
undaries of ap
areas, easeme

raphy at 5-fee
als; 
mary and Sec
rvation Areas 
bed in §7.3.6; 
al vegetation c
al soil types; 
d location of 

ng roads and s
ial connection
pace and trail

CIFIC REGULAT

ents 

quired. Concu
f a subdivision
pare and subm
purpose of th

ure that impor
n adequately 
creation of the
oposed open s

ments of this 
ysis map shall 

s; 
lakes, wetland
aries, and othe
 

pplicable regu
ents, and right

et or smaller 

condary 
labeled by ty

characteristics

protected Ope

structures; and
ns with existin
s. 

TIONS 

p. 7-3 

urrent 
n plat, 

mit a 
he site 
rtant 

e site 
space 

ds, 
er 

ulated 
ts-of-

ype, as 

s; 

en 

d 
ng 

 



p. 7-4 

2. 

3. 

4. 

7.3.6. 

Conservation
developer sha
subdivision p
lots than iden
conservation 
identify open
accord with §
which do not 
requirements 
The Conserva
include an Op
Plan, as descr
prepared and 
issuance of a 

Instrument of
Required. An
protection, su
easement or p
covenant and
shall be place
concurrent w
disturbance p

Other Requir
adhere to all 
requirements 
and the Subd

Open Space M
purposes of c
open space is
the conservat
subdivision th
permanent pr
the open spac

n Subdivision 
all prepare a c
plan which yie
ntified under §
subdivision p

n spaces to be 
§7.3.6 and ma

meet the size
of the applica

ation Subdivi
pen Space Ma
ribed in §7.3.6
submitted pri
land disturba

f Permanent P
n instrument o
uch as a conse
permanent res

d as described 
ed on the open

with the issuan
permit. 

rements. The a
other applicab
of the applica
ivision Regul

Management P
conservation s
s defined as th
tion developm
hat has been s
rotection. Acti
ce are restricte

Plan. The 
conservation 
elds no more 
§7.3.4. The 
plan shall 
protected in 

ay include lots
e and setback 
able district. 
sion Plan shal
anagement 
6 and shall be
ior to the 

ance permit. 

Protection 
of permanent 
ervation 
strictive 
in §7.3.6.5, 

n space 
ce of a land 

applicant shal
ble 
able district 
lations. 

Plan. For the 
subdivisions, 
he portion of 
ment or 
set aside for 
ivities within 
ed in perpetui

s 

ll 

e 

 

ll 

ity 

through th
approved

1. Standards

a. The mi
shall co
percent

b. The fol
Conser
be inclu
unless 
this pro
unusua
purpos
Subdiv

(1) The 10
(2) Ripari

width 
stream
Geolo
quadra

(3) Slopes
of at le
area; 

(4) Wetla
jurisdi
the Cl

(5) Existin
conne
and  

(6) Archa
burial 

c. The fol
Second
should 
space t

(1) Impor
(2) Existin

least o
(3) Indivi

greate
and 

O
Vesta

he use of a leg
d by the City A

s to Determin

inimum restri
omprise at lea
t of the gross 
llowing are co
rvation Areas 
uded within th
the applicant 
ovision would
al hardship an
es of the Con

vision: 
00-year flood
ian zones of a
along perenn

m shown on th
ogical Survey 
angle topogra
s above twent
east 10,000 sq

ands determine
ictional by the
lean Water Ac
ng and planne
ct the site to n

aeological site
grounds. 

llowing are co
dary Conserva
be included w

to the maximu
rtant historic s
ng healthy, na

one (1) acre co
idual existing 
er than eight (8

rdinance Numbe
avia Hills Zonin

gal instrumen
Attorney. 

ne Open Space

cted open spa
ast twenty-fiv
tract area. 

onsidered Prim
and are requi
he open space
demonstrates

d constitute an
nd be counter t
nservation 

dplain; 
at least 75 feet
nial and interm
he United Stat
(USGS) 

aphic maps.  
ty-five (25) pe
q. ft. contiguo

ed to be 
e Corps pursu
ct;  
ed trails that 
neighboring a

es, cemeteries 

onsidered 
ation Areas an
within the ope
um extent feas
sites  
ative forests o
ontiguous are
healthy trees 
8) inches calip

er 2331 
ng Code 

nt 

e 

ace 
e (25) 

mary 
ired to 
e, 
s that 
n 
to the 

t 
mittent 
tes 

ercent 
ous 

uant to 

areas; 

and 

nd 
en 
sible: 

of at 
a;  

per; 



Article 7 USE-SPECIFIC REGULATIONS 

p. 7-5 

(4) Other significant natural features and 
scenic viewsheds, particularly those 
that can be seen from public streets. 

d. Utility rights-of-way and small areas 
of impervious surface may be included 
within the protected open space but 
cannot be counted towards the twenty-
five (25) percent minimum area 
requirement (exception: historic 
Structures and existing trails may be 
counted). Large areas of impervious 
surface, such as streets and parking 
lots shall be excluded from the open 
space. 

e. At least thirty-three (33) percent of the 
open space shall be suitable for 
passive recreational use. 

f. At least seventy-five (75) percent of 
the open space shall be in a contiguous 
tract, which may be divided by a local 
Street whose area shall be excluded 
from the open space. The open space 
shall adjoin any neighboring areas of 
open space, other protected areas, and 
non-protected natural areas that would 
be candidates for inclusion as part of a 
future area of protected open space. 

g. The open space shall be directly 
accessible to the largest practicable 
number of lots and/or Buildings within 
the site. Non-abutting lots shall be 
provided with safe, convenient access 
to the open space. 

2. The following uses shall be permitted 
within the open space: 

a. Conservation of natural, archeological 
or historical resources;  

b. Meadows, woodlands, wetlands, 
wildlife corridors, game preserves, or 
similar conservation-oriented areas;  

c. Boardwalks or walking /bicycle trails 
constructed of porous paving 
materials; 

d. Passive recreation areas, such as open 
fields;  

e. Active recreation areas, provided that 
they are limited to no more than ten 
(10) percent of the total open space 
and are not located within Primary 
Conservation Areas. Active recreation 
areas may include impervious 
surfaces. Active recreation areas in 
excess of this limit must be located 
outside of the protected open space.  

f. Landscaped Stormwater Management 
facilities, community wastewater 
disposal systems and individual 
wastewater disposal systems located 
on soils particularly suited to such 
uses. Such facilities shall be located 
outside of Primary Conservation 
Areas;  

g. Easements for drainage, access, and 
underground utility lines;  

h. Other conservation-oriented uses 
compatible with the purposes of this 
Ordinance. 

3. The following uses shall be prohibited 
within the open space: 

a. Golf courses;  
b. Roads, parking lots and similar 

impervious surfaces, except as 
specifically authorized in the previous 
sections;  

c. Agricultural and forestry activities not 
conducted according to accepted best 
management practices;  

d. Impoundments; and 
e. Other activities as determined by the 

applicant and recorded on the legal 
instrument providing for permanent 
protection. 

4. Ownership and Management of Open 
Space. Ownership and maintenance of 
the common open space and any 
facilities thereon shall be as provided for 



Ordinance Number 2331 
Vestavia Hills Zoning Code 

p. 7-6 

in §4.6 Ownership and Management of 
Common Open Spaces. 

5. Legal Instrument for Protection of Open 
Space. The open space shall be protected 
in perpetuity by a binding legal 
instrument that is recorded with the deed. 
The instrument for permanent protection 
shall include clear restrictions on the use 
of the open space. These restrictions shall 
include all restrictions contained in this 
article, as well as any further restrictions 
the applicant chooses to place on the use 
of the open space. The instrument shall 
be one of the following: 

a. A permanent conservation easement in 
favor of either: 

(1) a land trust or similar conservation-
oriented non-profit organization with 
legal authority to accept such 
easements. The organization shall be 
bona fide and in perpetual existence 
and the conveyance instruments shall 
contain an appropriate provision for 
retransfer in the event the 
organization becomes unable to carry 
out its functions; or  

(2) a governmental entity with an interest 
in pursuing goals compatible with the 
purposes of this Ordinance, and if the 
entity accepting the easement is not 
the City, then a third right of 
enforcement favoring the City shall 
be included in the easement. 

b. A permanent restrictive covenant for 
conservation purposes in favor of a 
governmental entity. 

c. An equivalent legal tool that provides 
permanent protection, as approved by 
the City Attorney. 

6. Tax Assessment of Open Space. Once a 
legal instrument for permanent protection 
has been placed upon the open space, the 
applicant may request the County Tax 
Assessor to reassess the open space at a 

lower value to reflect its more limited 
use. 

§7.4. Bed and Breakfast 
7.4.1. Use Limitations 

1. Bed and Breakfasts are permitted only in 
detached single-family dwellings. 
Lodging located in a non-residential 
building is considered either a “hotel” or 
“motel” and is not subject to the 
requirements of this §7.4.  

2. The maximum number of allowable 
guest rooms shall be determined by 
dividing the gross interior floor area of 
the principal building (excluding 
garages) by 500 sq. ft. And, no more than 
fifty (50) percent of the GFA (excluding 
garages) of the principal building shall be 
utilized for guest accommodations. All 
guest rooms shall be located within the 
principal building. 

7.4.2. Parking. For each approved guest room, 
there shall be provided one (1) parking 
space, in addition to those required for 
the dwelling use. Such additional 
required parking spaces shall be properly 
situated on site and screened from 
adjacent properties. Such parking areas 
should not detract from the residential 
character of the neighborhood. 
Recreational vehicle parking shall be 
prohibited. 

7.4.3. Modifications to Dwelling. Aside from 
any alterations necessary to ensure the 
safety of the dwelling, no exterior 
modifications shall be allowed unless 
approved by the BZA as a part of the 
Special Exception approval process. 
Approved exterior modifications should 
not detract from the residential character 
of the dwelling or the neighborhood. 



Resolution Number 4968 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4968 
 

 A RESOLUTION DECLARING A WEED AND 

OTHER VEGETATION NUISANCE PURSUANT TO 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2567 AND DIRECTING THE 

CITY MANAGER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE 

 

 WHEREAS, on May 11, 2015, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2567 to establish a procedure for the 

abatement of grass and weeds and for the prosecution and abatement of grass and weed 

violations; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Compliance Officer has made a “First Demand” on the 

property located at 2600 Kingswood Road; a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A,” 

attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4968 as if written fully therein; 

and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted at the regularly scheduled City 

Council meeting of August 14, 2017 at 6:00 PM in which the facts of the matter were 

discussed; and  

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

declare the property a nuisance and direct the City Manager to abate said nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions set forth in Ordinance Number 2567; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. The property located at 2600 Kingswood Road is hereby declared a nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions of Ordinance Number 2567 and the City Manager is 

hereby authorized to abate said nuisance pursuant to the terms and provisions of 

said ordinance. 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption. 



Resolution Number 4968 

Page 2 

 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14
th

 day of July, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4969 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4969 
 

 A RESOLUTION DECLARING A WEED AND 

OTHER VEGETATION NUISANCE PURSUANT TO 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2567 AND DIRECTING THE 

CITY MANAGER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE 

 

 WHEREAS, on May 11, 2015, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2567 to establish a procedure for the 

abatement of grass and weeds and for the prosecution and abatement of grass and weed 

violations; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Compliance Officer has made a “First Demand” on the 

property located at 1600 Gentilly Drive; a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A,” 

attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4969 as if written fully therein; 

and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted at the regularly scheduled City 

Council meeting of August 14, 2017 at 6:00 PM in which the facts of the matter were 

discussed; and  

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

declare the property a nuisance and direct the City Manager to abate said nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions set forth in Ordinance Number 2567; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. The property located at 1600 Gentilly Drive is hereby declared a nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions of Ordinance Number 2567 and the City Manager is 

hereby authorized to abate said nuisance pursuant to the terms and provisions of 

said ordinance. 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption. 



Resolution Number 4969 

Page 2 

 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14
th

 day of July, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2724 

Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER _2724 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 

PURCHASING AND CLOSING OF THE SALE OF REAL ESTATE 

 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2724 is considered, approved, enacted and 

adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 14th day 

of August, 2017. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, municipalities in Alabama have the legal authority to acquire real 

estate by purchase pursuant to Title 11-40-1, Code of Alabama, 1975; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, a municipal corporation (the “City”) finds and determines that the 

consideration of the purchase by the City of the real estate and improvements for the 

property located at 1933 Merryvale Road hereinafter described in Section 1 below (the 

“Property”) will promote the health, safety and general welfare of the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the Ordinance Number 2724 will be introduced by a first reading at 

the regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council on July 24, 2017 and considered for 

approval by the City Council at its regularly scheduled meeting on August 14, 2017 

pursuant to the procedure for adoption of an ordinance set forth at Title 11-45-2(b), Code 

of Alabama, 1975; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of an Agreement for the Purchase and Sale of Real Estate by 

and between Patricia Crim Dietlein, as “Seller,” and the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

a municipal corporation, as “Purchaser,” setting forth a purchase price of One Dollar(s) 

($1.00) is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit A and is incorporated into this Ordnance 

Number 2724 by reference as though set out fully herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Alabama Open Meetings Act set forth at Title 36-25A-7(a)(7), 

Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the material terms of a contract to purchase real 

property shall be disclosed in a public meeting prior to the execution of the contract; and 

 WHEREAS, only the City Council by the enactment of an ordinance or 

resolution can authorize and direct the execution and delivery of a contract for and on 

behalf of the municipality (Van Antwerp, et al v. Board of Commissions of City of 



Ordinance Number 2724 

Page 2 
 

Mobile, et al, 217 Ala. 201, 115 So. 239 (1928); and Town of Boligee v. Greene County 

Water and Sewer Authority, 77 So.3d 1166 (2011)); and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-47-5, Code of Alabama, 1975, reads as follows: 

 “Contracts entered into by a municipality shall be in 

writing, signed and executed in the name of the city or 

town by the officers authorized to make the same and by 

the party contracting.  In cases not otherwise directed by 

law or ordinance, such contracts shall be entered into and 

executed by the mayor in the name of the city or town and 

all obligations for the payment of money by the 

municipality, except for bonds and interest coupons, shall 

be attested by the clerk.  This section shall not be construed 

to cover purchases for ordinary needs of the municipality;” 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43-21(b)(7), Code of Alabama, 1975, requires the City 

Manager to sign all lawful contracts on behalf of the municipality and reads as follows: 

 “(b) The City Manager shall have the power and 

it shall be his duty:... 

  (7) To make and execute all lawful 

contracts on behalf of the municipality as to matters within 

the jurisdiction; provided, that no contract, purchase or 

obligation involving more than $100.00 shall be binding 

until after the approval by the governing body.” 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. PROMOTION OF PUBLIC WELFARE:  The City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation, finds and determines that the 

purchase by the City of the hereinafter-described real property and improvements (the 

“Property”) will promote the health, safety and general welfare of the City: 

 That certain real estate and improvements situated at 1933 Merryvale Road in the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216, more particularly described as follows: 

Lot A, according to the Amended Map of a Resurvey of 

Lots 1,2,3, and 4 Block 6, Waldridge Terrace, as Recorded 

in Map Book 52, Page 18, in the Probate Office of 

Jefferson County, Alabama 

 

 The above-described property shall be hereinafter referred to as “the Property.” 



Ordinance Number 2724 

Page 3 
 

 2. PURCHASE PRICE:  The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama hereby 

agrees to pay the sum of Three Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollar(s) ($390,000.00) to 

purchase the Property. 

 3. AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL 

ESTATE:  The purchase and closing of the sale of the Property shall be completed all in 

accordance with the terms, provisions, conditions and limitations of an Agreement for the 

Purchase and Sale of Real Estate (“Agreement”) negotiated, submitted and recommended 

by the City Manager and City Attorney.  The Agreement is by and between Patricia Crim 

Dietlein (“Seller”) and the City of Vestavia Hills, a municipal corporation (“Purchaser”) 

for the purchase of the Property at a purchase price of Three Hundred Ninety Thousand 

Dollar(s) ($390,000.00).  A copy of said Agreement is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 

A and is incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2724 by reference as though set out 

fully herein.  The City Council hereby accepts and approves the Agreement and the City 

Manager and Mayor are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said Agreement and 

any and all other documents necessary to close the purchase of this sale all in accordance 

with Exhibit A. 

 4. FUNDING:  The City Council authorized and directed the City Manager 

to borrow funds by way of Ordinance Number 2702 to be used for the purchase of the 

Property.   

5. ARTICLE AND SECTION HEADINGS:  The article and section 

headings and captions contained herein are included for convenience only, and shall not 

be considered a part hereof or affect in any manner the construction or interpretation 

hereof. 

 6. SEVERABILITY:  If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance 

shall be held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be 

construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance which shall continue in 

full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

 7. POSTING OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2724:  If the City Council 

approves, enacts and adopts Ordinance Number 2724, as written or as amended, then in 

such event, said Ordinance shall be posted in three (3) public places within the City as 

required by Title 11-45-8(b)(1), Code of Alabama, 1975. 



Ordinance Number 2724 

Page 4 
 

 8. EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2702:  Ordinance 

Number 2724 shall become effective five (5) days after posting in accordance with Title 

11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of August, 

2017. 

      CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 

 

 

      By_________________________________ 

       Ashley C. Curry 

       Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

CERTIFICATION: 

 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance #2724 is a true and correct 

copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills on the _______ day of __________, 2017 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 

Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ____ day of 

_____________, 2017. 

 

    

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 



 
 

STATE OF ALABAMA 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY  

 
AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL ESTATE 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL ESTATE (“the 

Agreement”), is hereby made and entered into as of the ____ day of July, 2017 by and between 
Patricia Crim Dietlein, (hereinafter referred to as “Seller”), and the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
a municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Purchaser”).   

   
 WITNESS THESE RECITALS: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Seller owns real estate and improvements situated at 1933 Merryvale Road 
in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described in Section 2 
below (hereinafter referred to as “Property”); and 
  
 WHEREAS, Purchaser wishes to purchase the Property for the purchase price set forth in 
Section 3 below subject to the terms, provisions and conditions set forth in this Agreement for 
Purchase and Sale of Real Estate (“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is willing to sell the Property to Purchaser for the purchase price set forth 
in section 3 below subject to the terms, provisions and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the mutual covenants hereinafter 
contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged by the parties hereto, Seller and Purchaser hereby mutually covenant and agree as 
follows: 
 
 1. PURCHASE AND SALE.  For and in consideration of One and No/100 Dollars 
($1.00) in hand paid by Purchaser to Seller and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by Seller, Seller agrees to sell and Purchaser 
agrees to purchase the Property for the Purchase Price (as defined below) and on the terms, 
provisions and conditions hereinafter set forth. 
 
 2. PROPERTY.  The Property is situated at 1933 Merryvale Road in the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama (Parcel 2800303014001.000).  The legal description of 
the Property to be conveyed by Seller to Purchaser is set forth below: 
 

Lot A, according to the Amended Map of a Resurvey of Lots 1, 2, 3 
and 4, Block 6, Waldridge Terrace, as recorded in Map Book 52, 
Page 18, in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 
 The above described Property does not constitute the homeplace of the Seller. 

Ordinance Number 2724 

Exhibit A 

Page 1



Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate 
Page 2 
 
 3. PURCHASE PRICE.  The purchase price for the Property shall be Three Hundred 
Ninety Thousand Dollars ($390,000.00) (the “Purchase Price”).   
 
 4. PAYMENT OF PURCHASE PRICE.  The payment of the Purchase Price shall be 
paid by the Purchaser to the Seller as follows: 
 
  A. EARNEST MONEY (“THE EARNEST MONEY”):  Earnest Money in the amount 
of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) shall be paid by Purchaser concurrently with the execution 
and delivery of this Agreement.  The Earnest Money shall be paid to Land Title Company of 
Alabama, Inc. (“title company”), 600 – 20th Street North in the City of Birmingham, Alabama 35203. 
The title company shall deposit said earnest money in an interest-bearing account and pay the same 
to the Seller at closing.  If Purchaser terminates the Purchase Agreement during the Inspection Period 
or Approval Period, the Earnest Money will be returned to Purchaser. 
 
  B. CASH ON CLOSING THIS SALE:  The entire remaining balance of the Purchase 
Price shall be paid to Seller by Purchaser in cash or immediately available funds at closing.   
 
 5. CLOSING AND CLOSING DATE.   Subject to the terms, provisions and 
conditions of this Agreement, the closing of the sale and purchase of the Property (the “Closing”) 

shall occur on or before November 26, 2017.  The date of closing, at the option of the Seller, may be 
extended to January 26, 2018, if Seller may receive more favorable tax consequences on this 
transaction by a change of law. 
 
 6. CONVEYANCE.   Seller agrees to convey the Property to Purchaser by statutory 
warranty deed (the “Deed”) at the Closing, subject to the Permitted Exceptions (as herein defined). 
 
 7. TITLE INSURANCE.   Purchaser shall, within thirty (30) days after the Effective 
Date, secure a title commitment (the “Title Commitment”) naming Purchaser as the proposed insured 

on a Chicago Title Insurance Company Standard Form Owners Policy issued by Land Title Company 
of Alabama, Inc. as agent for Chicago Title Insurance Company (the “Title Agent”) for the Property 

described in Section 2 hereof in the amount of the Purchase Price (the “Title Policy”) subject to the 
following permitted exceptions (a) easements, covenants and other encumbrances of record, (b) 
mineral and mining rights not owned by Seller, (c) matters that would be disclosed by a current 
survey of the Property.  The premium for the title policy shall be paid by Purchaser. 
 
 8. INSPECTIONS:  Purchaser, or Purchaser’s representatives, shall have the right to 

enter the Property for the purpose of inspection of the same, and/or making boundary line and 
topographical surveys of the same, and/or making soil tests thereon, and/or in general observing and 
investigating the condition of the Property.  Purchaser agrees to indemnify Seller from and against 
any liability that results from Purchaser performing any of its inspections as provided herein, and 
such indemnity shall survive any termination of this Agreement.  Seller or her designee shall be 
present at any and all inspections by Purchaser. 

Ordinance Number 2724 

Exhibit A 

Page 2



Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate 
Page 3 
 
 
 9. INSPECTION PERIOD:  Purchaser shall have a period of sixty (60) days following 
the effective date of this Agreement (“Inspection Period”) to determine, either personally or through 

or with a representative of Purchaser’s choosing, any and all conditions of the Property (including 
without limitation the condition of all improvements thereon) material to Purchaser’s decision to 

purchase the Property.  The determination shall include, without limitation, Purchaser satisfying 
itself as to title matters, soil testing, survey matters, structural matters, zoning matters, subdivision 
regulations, engineering and site planning, environmental matters, specifically including, but not 
limited to Phase I ESA, existing contracts and financial matters affecting the Property, all soil, 
landscaping and other physical conditions of the Property, availability and sufficient quantities of all 
utilities, and all additional matters that Purchaser believes relevant, in its sole and absolute 
discretion, in determining whether or not to purchase the Property.  Purchaser, at Purchaser’s sole 

discretion, for any reason or no reason, shall have the right and option to cancel this Agreement by 
giving written notice of termination to Seller no later than the last day of the Inspection Period, in 
which the right and option to cancel this Agreement by giving written notice of termination to Seller 
no later than the last day of the Inspection Period, in which event this Agreement shall be of no 
further force or affect except for any indemnity or other obligations that expressly survive, and the 
Earnest Money shall be refunded to Purchaser.  If Purchaser cancels and terminates this Agreement 
prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period, then in such event the Earnest Money shall be 
refunded by the Seller to Purchaser in full.  Should the Purchaser fail to cancel and terminate this 
Agreement prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period, then in such event the earnest money 
shall be non-refundable and kept by the Seller. 
 
 10. ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS:  Seller has no actual knowledge that the 
Property has in the past been used or is presently used for the handling, storage, manufacturing, 
refining, transportation or disposal of “toxic material”, “hazardous substances” or “hazardous 

waste”.   
 
 11. CONDITION OF PROPERTY:  Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that: 
 
  A. Seller has not made and does not make any covenant, representation of 
warranty, either expressed or implied, regarding the physical condition of the Property or any portion 
thereof, the suitability of the Property for any particular purpose or use whatsoever, utility 
availability for the Property, whether the Property is subject to surface or subsurface contamination 
by toxic or hazardous waste or with respect to any other matters affecting the Property or Purchaser’s 

contemplated use thereof; 
 
  B. Purchaser has been given the absolute and unfettered right during the 
Inspection Period to conduct such Inspections of the Property as Purchaser, in its sole discretion, may 
determine necessary in order to satisfy itself of all conditions and other aspects of the Property.  
Seller or her designee shall be present at any and all inspections by Purchaser; and 

Ordinance Number 2724 

Exhibit A 

Page 3



Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate 
Page 4 
 
  C. Purchaser has available to it such resources, expertise, consultants and 
advisors so that it can make a sound and reasonable judgment as to the condition of the Property as 
well as to all economic conditions, suitability requirements and all other matters affecting the use, 
development and ownership of the Property.  Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that the Property is 
to be sold and conveyed to, and accepted by, Purchaser in its present condition, “AS IS, WHERE IS 

AND WITH ALL FAULTS,” and Purchaser hereby assumes the risk that adverse physical 

characteristics and existing conditions may have not been revealed by the Inspections. 
 
 12. CLOSING COSTS:  The Closing shall be held at the Vestavia Hills Municipal 
Center located at 1032 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama.  The closing attorney shall 
be Patrick H. Boone. 
 
  A. CLOSING COSTS FOR SELLER:  The Seller shall pay the following costs: 
 
   (1) None. 
 
  B. CLOSING COSTS FOR PURCHASER:  The Purchaser shall pay the following 
closing costs: 
   (1) The fee for recording the deed, if any. 
   (2) Legal fee to Purchaser’s attorney. 
   (3) Cost of due diligence during Inspection Period. 
   (4) Cost of title insurance policy. 
 
 13. TAXES:  The ad valorem taxes shall be prorated between Seller and Purchaser.  For 
purposes of this Agreement, the municipal ad valorem taxes shall be deemed to be paid in advance, 
while the state and county ad valorem taxes shall be deemed to be paid in arrears. 
 
 14. ASSIGNMENT:  Purchaser may not assign this Agreement or any of its rights 
hereunder without the express written consent of Seller.  Any assignment in violation of the 
restriction on assignment in this Section 14 shall be void and of no force and effect.   
 
 15. POSSESSION:  Possession of the Property shall be given to Purchaser no later than 
April 30, 2018. 
 
 16. BROKER:  None. 
 
  A. PURCHASER:  The Purchaser is not represented in this contemplated 
transaction by any real estate broker/agent. 
 
  B. SELLER:  The Seller is not represented in this contemplated transaction by any 
real estate broker/agent. 
 

Ordinance Number 2724 

Exhibit A 

Page 4



Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate 
Page 5 
 
 17. NOTICES:  All notices and demands to be given or made hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be given by (i) personal or hand delivery, (ii) nationally recognized express 
overnight delivery service (with charges therefor prepaid, or (iii) certified or registered mail, return 
receipt requested (with postage therefor prepaid).  Notices shall be deemed received upon (a) receipt, 
if hand or personally delivered, (b) the next business day after the notice has been deposited with a 
nationally recognized express overnight delivery service, or (the third business day after the notice 
has been deposited with the United States Postal Service.  Notices shall be provided to the parties at 
the follow addresses: 
 

IF TO SELLER:   Patricia Crim Dietlein 
    1108 Crown Drive 
    Birmingham, Alabama 35235 
    Telephone No. 205-853-0286 
    E-mail:  PDietlein@aol.com  
 
IF TO PURCHASER:  Jeffrey D. Downes, City Manager 
    Vestavia Hills Municipal Center 
    1032 Montgomery Highway 
    Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 
    Telephone No.  205-978-0195 
    E-Mail:  jdownes@vhal.org  

 
 Either party hereto may change the address to which it is to receive notice or the 
representative to whom notice is to be given by written notice to the other part in the manner set 
forth above. 
 
 18. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES: 
 
  A. In the event that Seller shall fail to consummate the transaction as 
contemplated herein for any reason other than Purchaser’s default, then Purchaser may, as its sole 

and exclusive remedy, either (i) enforce this Agreement and the purchase and sale transaction 
contemplated herein by specific performance or (ii) terminate this Agreement, whereupon the 
Earnest Money paid to Seller and accrued interest shall be promptly returned to Purchaser, this 
Agreement shall be deemed cancelled and terminated and, except for the indemnification obligations 
of Purchaser set forth in Section 9 above, neither party shall have any further obligation or liability to 
the other hereunder.  Purchaser hereby expressly waives any right to seek or obtain any monetary 
judgment or damages against Seller in the event of any default hereunder by Seller and acknowledges 
and agrees that no other damages, rights or remedies shall be collectible, enforceable or available to 
Purchaser. 

Ordinance Number 2724 

Exhibit A 

Page 5

mailto:PDietlein@aol.com
mailto:jdownes@vhal.org


Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate 
Page 6 
 
  B. If, at any time after the expiration of the Inspection Period, Purchaser shall fail 
to perform its obligation to close the transaction contemplated herein for any reason other than 
Seller’s default, then the Earnest Money shall be non-refundable and kept by Seller as liquidated 
damages in which event this Agreement shall automatically be deemed terminated and cancelled and, 
except for the indemnification obligations of Purchaser set forth in Section 9 above, neither party 
shall have any further obligation or liability to the other hereunder.  Because of the difficulty, 
inconvenience and uncertainty of ascertaining actual damages, no other damages, rights or remedies 
shall in any case be collectible, enforceable or available to Seller and Seller agrees to accept and 
retain the Earnest Money as its total damages and relief hereunder in the event Purchaser fails to 
close the purchase and sale transaction contemplated herein. 
 
 19. EFFECTIVE DATE:  The “Effective Date” to be inserted on the first page of this 

Agreement is the date upon which this Agreement has been fully executed by Seller and Purchaser 
and each of Seller and Purchaser has received a fully executed original counterpart.   
 
 20. RISK OF LOSS:  Seller agrees to keep in force sufficient hazard insurance on the 
Property to protect all interests until this sale is closed and the deed delivered.  If the Property is 
destroyed or materially damaged between the date hereof and the closing, and Seller is unable or 
unwilling to restore it to its previous condition prior to closing.  Purchaser shall have the option of 
cancelling this contract and receiving the Earnest Money back or accepting the Property in its then 
condition.  If Purchaser elects to accept the Property in its damaged condition, any insurance 
proceeds otherwise payable to Seller by reason of such damage shall be applied to the balance of the 
purchase price or otherwise be payable to Purchaser. 
 
 21. REMOVAL OF ITEMS:  Seller and Purchaser acknowledge and agree, that if this 
sale closes, then in such event the Purchaser will raze the house on the Property.  Purchaser shall 
preserve as many dogwood trees and magnolia trees as is reasonably possible.  Therefore, the Seller 
shall have the right to remove any part of the structure or plantings on the Property prior to April 30, 
2018. 
 
 22. MEMORIUM:  Purchaser shall place and maintain a park bench with a small plaque 
“In Memory of Carmen R. Crim and Helen L. Crim” or other inscription agreed upon by Purchaser 
and Seller thereon at a location on the perimeter of the Property at the completion of the project.  
Purchaser shall pay the cost of the park bench and plaque and the Purchaser shall select the exact site 
for placement of said park bench and plaque. 
 
 23. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
  A. GOVERNING LAW:  This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the 
parties hereto shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Alabama.  The jurisdiction and venue for the resolution of any dispute shall be in Jefferson County, 
Alabama. 

Ordinance Number 2724 

Exhibit A 

Page 6



Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate 
Page 7 
 
  B. BINDING AGREEMENT:  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to 
the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 
 
  C. SURVIVAL:  All representations and warranties of this Agreement shall 
survive the Closing, as shall any covenants for performance after Closing. 
 
  D. TIME OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 
 
  E. NO WAIVER:  The failure of either party to exercise any rights under this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any right, nor excuse the other party’s full performance.  

No express waiver of any matter shall affect any other matter under this Agreement.  Express 
waivers are only effective if in writing. 
 
  F. CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS:  Descriptive headings are for convenience only 
and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any provision.  Any ambiguities of this 
Agreement shall be construed fairly and equitably regardless of the participation of either party in 
drafting this Agreement.  The reference in terms to gender and number shall be modified as may be 
appropriate. 
 
  G. SEVERABILITY:  In case of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall for 
any reason be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction in any 
respect, the remaining provisions shall remain in effect and the Agreement be performed in a fair and 
equitable manner as to any uncertainties arising from the unenforceable provisions.   
 
  H. DATES:  If any date provided in this Agreement falls on a Saturday, Sunday or 
holiday, the date shall be the next business day. 
 
  I. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement may be executed 
simultaneously in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of which 
shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 
  J. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This written Agreement contains the entire agreement 
between the parties, incorporating all prior agreements, and may only be amended in writing 
executed by both parties. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller and Purchaser have executed this Agreement to be 
executed as of the date first above written. 
 
WITNESSED:     SELLER: 
 
_______________________________ _________________________________________ 
       Patricia Crim Dietlein 

Ordinance Number 2724 

Exhibit A 

Page 7



Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate 
Page 8 
 
                      PURCHASER: 
      THE CITYOF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
      A Municipal Corporation 
  
      By _____________________________________ 
       Ashley C. Curry 
       Mayor 
 
      By _____________________________________ 
       Jeffrey D. Downes 
       City Manager 
ATTESTED: 
                  
 
By___________________________________ 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 
                  

GENERAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
                  
 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that Patricia Crim Dietlein, a married woman, whose name is signed to the foregoing 
Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me 
on this day that being informed of the contents of the Agreement, she executed the same voluntarily 
on the day the same bears date. 
                  
 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _______ day of July, 2017. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
____________________ 
SEAL 

Ordinance Number 2724 

Exhibit A 

Page 8



Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate 
Page 9 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
                  
 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that Ashley C. Curry, whose name as Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a 
municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate, 
and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that being informed of the contents of 
the Agreement, he in his capacity as such and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for 
and as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation, on the day the same 
bears date. 
                  
 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _______ day of July, 2017. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
____________________ 
SEAL 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
                  
 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that Jeffrey D. Downes, whose name as City Manager of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
a municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate, 
and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that being informed of the contents of 
the Agreement, he in his capacity as such and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for 
and as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation, on the day the same 
bears date. 
                  
 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _______ day of July, 2017. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
____________________ 
SEAL 
 

Ordinance Number 2724 

Exhibit A 

Page 9


	2017_0724CC_A
	2017_0710CC_M
	Resolution 4970
	Resolution 4967
	Resolution 4962
	4962
	Fund 7 Expenditure Authorization 7-5-17

	Resolution 4966
	Resolution 4964
	Annexation_Packet_2017_June.pdf
	Tax_Information
	Subject_Property_1644_Shades_Crest_Rd

	Annex_Letter
	Annexation_Resolution
	Fire_Dues_Letter
	Final_survey
	GIS_topo
	05_11_17_CONCEPT PLAN
	zoning_certificate_Jeff_Co
	VH_Zoning_For_Area

	VH_R-2

	VH_Conservation_Subdivsion



	Resolution 4968
	Resolution 4969
	Ordinance 2724



